## **AGREEMENT**

Between

## **TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN**

# DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY VEHICLE MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT

and

# LOCAL NO. 11, affiliated with INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS

January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2019

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	PAGE
ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 2. UNION SECURITY	3
ARTICLE 3. CHECK-OFF OF UNION FEES	4
ARTICLE 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	8
ARTICLE 5. SENIORITY	10
ARTICLE 6. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	13
ARTICLE 7. HOLIDAYS	15
ARTICLE 8. VACATIONS	16
ARTICLE 9. LEAVES	17
ARTICLE 10. WELFARE AND PENSION BENEFITS	19
ARTICLE 11. WORK SCHEDULE	20
ARTICLE 12. DISCHARGE	21
ARTICLE 13. GENERAL	23
ARTICLE 14. VETERANS RIGHTS AND BENEFITS	24
ARTICLE 15. SEPARATION AND SEVERANCE PAY	25
ARTICLE 16. LONGEVITY	26
ARTICLE 17. WAGES	27
ARTICLE 18. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM	29
ARTICLE 20. DURATION OF AGREEMENT	32
EXHIBIT "A" NB ORDINANCE 884-02	33
EXHIBIT "B" HEALTH CARE BENEFITS HIGHLIGHTS	35

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this \_\_\_\_\_ day of, \_\_\_\_\_,
2016 effective as of January 1, 2016, between the TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN,
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY, hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER", and
LOCAL NO. 11, affiliated with the INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF
TEAMSTERS, a labor organization, located at 810 Belmont Avenue, North Haledon,
New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the "UNION".

#### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Union has presented proof that it represents a majority of the employees employed in the Vehicle Maintenance Department of the Township of North Bergen, excluding Managerial Executives, supervisory employees, Office and Clerical employees, and

WHEREAS, the Township of North Bergen, by virtue thereof, has recognized the said Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees employed in the Vehicle Maintenance Department of the Township of North Bergen except for the exclusions provided above.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto, as follows:

## **ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION**

Section 1. The Township of North Bergen hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees now employed or to be employed by the Vehicle Maintenance Department of the Township of North Bergen in the positions of Laborer, Welder, Mechanic, Senior Mechanic, Diesel Mechanic, and Senior Diesel Mechanic, excluding all others and excluding Managerial Executives, Supervisory, Office and Clerical employees as well as seasonal, temporary and part-time employees in all those matters specifically provided for herein pertaining to wages, hours and conditions of employment.

Section 2. The bargaining unit shall consist of all employees now employed or to be employed by the Vehicle Maintenance Department of the Township of North Bergen and wherever used herein the term "employees" shall mean and be construed only as referring to said employees, except for the exclusions provided above.

## **ARTICLE 2. UNION SECURITY**

Section 1. The Employer agrees it will give effect to the following form of Union Security:

- (a) All present employees who are members of the Local Union on the effective date of this Agreement shall remain members of the Local Union in good standing by payment of the regular monthly dues. All present employees who are not members of the Local Union will pay a Representation Fee as set forth hereafter.
- (b) It is agreed that at the time of hire, newly hired employees, who fall within the bargaining unit, will be informed that they have the chance to join the Union thirty (30) days thereafter or pay to the Local Union a Representation Fee.

#### ARTICLE 3. CHECK-OFF OF UNION FEES

Section 1(a). The Employer hereby agrees to deduct from the wages of employees by means of a check-off the dues uniformly required by the labor organization pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S. 52:14-15.9E. The Employer, after receipt of written authorization from each individual employee, agrees to deduct from the salaries of said employees their monthly dues and initiation fees. Such deductions shall be made from the 2<sup>nd</sup> salary paid to each employee during the month and such deduction made the 1<sup>st</sup> month shall be a double deduction and thereafter the regular deduction shall apply to dues owed for the following month.

Section 1(b). In making the deductions and transmittals as above specified, the Employer shall rely upon the most recent communication from the Union as to the amount of monthly dues and proper amount of initiation fee. The total amount deducted shall be paid to the Union with fifteen (15) calendar days after such deduction is made.

Section 2. The Union shall indemnify, defend and save the Township harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Township in reliance upon the salary deduction authorization cards submitted by the Union to the Township.

## Section 2. Representation Fee.

- A. If an employee does not become a member of the Union during any membership year (from January 1 to the following December 31) which is covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, said employee will be required to pay a Representation Fee to the Union for that membership year. The purpose of this fee will be to offset the employee's per capita cost of services rendered by the Union as majority representative.
- B. Prior to the beginning of each membership year, the Union will notify the Employer in writing of the amount of the regular membership dues, initiation fees and

assessments charged by the Union to its own members for that membership year. The Representation Fee to be paid by non-members will be equal to 85% of that amount.

In order to adequately offset the per capital cost of services rendered by the Union as majority representative, the Representation Fee should be equal in amount to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the Union to its own members, and the Representation Fee has been set at 85% of that amount solely because that is the maximum presently allowed by law. If the law is changed in this regard, the amount of the representation fee automatically will be increased to the maximum allowed, said increase to become effective as of the beginning of the Union membership year immediately following the effective date of the change.

- C.1. Once during each membership year covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, the Union will submit to the Employer a list of those employees who have not become members of the Union for the then current membership year. The Employer will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph 2 below, the full amount of the Representation Fee and promptly will transmit the amount so deducted to the Union.
- C.2. The Employer will deduct the Representation Fee in equal installments, as nearly as possible, from the pay checks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the remainder of the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid:
  - a. 10 days after receipt of the aforesaid list by the Employer; or
- b. 30 days after the employee begins his or her employment in a bargaining unit position, unless the employee previously served in a bargaining unit position and continued in the employ of the Employer in a non-bargaining unit position or was on layoff, in which event the deductions will begin with the first pay check paid 10 days after

the resumption of the employee's employment in a bargaining unit position, whichever is later.

- C.3. If any employee who is required to pay a Representation Fee terminates his or her employment with the Employer before the Union has received the full amount of the Representation Fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Employer will deduct the unpaid portion of the fee from the last pay check paid to said employee during the membership year in question.
- C.4. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for the deduction of Representation Fees and the transmission of such fees to the Union will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Union.
- C.5. The Union will notify the Employer in writing of any changes in the list provided for in paragraph 1 above and/or the amount of the Representation Fee, and such changes will be reflected in any deductions made more than 10 days after the Employer received notice.
- C.6. On or about the last day of each month beginning with the month this agreement becomes effective, the Employer will submit to the Union a list of all employees who began their employment in a bargaining unit position during the preceding 30 day period. The list will include names, job titles and dates of employment for all such employees. The Employer further agrees to notify the Union in the event dues for an employee cannot be deducted from the designated salary and the reason thereof.
- C.7. Teamsters Local 11 shall establish and maintain at all times a demand and return system as provided by N.J.S.A. 34-13A-5.5(c) and 5.6, and membership in Teamsters Local 11 shall be available to all employees in the unit on an equal basis at all times. In the event Teamsters Local 11 fails to maintain such a system, or if

membership is not so available, the Employer shall immediately cease making said deductions.

#### **ARTICLE 4. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

Section 1. A grievance shall be a claim by an employee that according to him he has been harmed by the interpretation or application of this Agreement.

Section 2. A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated in writing with five (5) calendar days from the time when the cause for grievance occurred, and the procedures following shall be resorted to as the sole means of obtaining adjustment of the grievance.

## Section 3. Procedure

- a. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next step. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be a waiver of further appeal of the decision.
- b. The grievance, when it first arises, shall be taken up orally between the employee, the Shop Steward, and the Supervisor.
- c. If no satisfactory settlement is reached during the first informal conference, then such grievance shall be reduced in writing and the Shop Steward shall serve the same upon the Director. Within five (5) working days thereafter, the grievance shall be discussed between the Commissioner of Public Safety or his designee and the Union Delegate or the Shop Steward. A written decision shall be given to the Union within five (5) working days thereafter.
- d. If the decision given by the Director or his designee to the Union does not satisfactorily settle the grievance, the Union shall notify the Commissioner with five (5) working days, of its desire to meet with the Commissioner, who shall meet with the Union Delegate and Shop Steward within five (5) working days after receipt of such notice by the Deputy Director. A written decision shall be given to the Union within five (5) working days thereafter.

e. In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily settled by the meeting between the Director and the representative of the Union, then both parties agree that within ten (10) calendar days either party may request the Public Employment Relations Commission to aid then in the selection of an Arbitrator, according to the rules and regulation of the Public Employment Relations Commission, who shall have full power to hear and determine the dispute and the Arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding.

Section 4. The arbitrator shall have no authority to change, modify, alter, substitute, add to or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. No dispute arising out of any question pertaining to the renewal of this Agreement shall be subject to the arbitration provisions of this Agreement.

<u>Section 5</u>. The cost of arbitration, other than the costs incurred individually by the parties in the preparation and presentation of their case to the arbitrator, shall be shared equally by the Employer and the Union.

#### **ARTICLE 5. SENIORITY**

Section 1. The Director shall establish and maintain a seniority list of employees; names and dates of employment from date of last hire on a Department basis, with the employee with the longest length of continuous and uninterrupted Department service to be placed at the top of said seniority list. The name of all employees with shorter length of continuous service shall follow the name of such senior employee, in order, until the name of the employee with the shortest length of service appears at the foot of the list. The seniority of each employee shall date from the employee's date of last hiring with the Director.

Section 1(a). Department entity shall prevail. In the event of a temporary absence or shortage of personnel, the Director shall fill the same in the following manner:

- A. He shall select from the same Department a man of higher classification with the least seniority available.
- B. If no replacement is available in the higher classification, the Employer will fill the vacancy from the lesser classification with the highest seniority qualified man.
- C. If no qualified employees are available within the given department, replacement will be sought from the other departments in the unit, from like classification first, and thereafter as outlined in Paragraphs A and B herein.

Section 2. New employees retained beyond the probationary period shall be considered regular employees and their length of service with the Employer shall begin with the original date of their employment and their names placed on the "Seniority List". Such seniority list shall be kept up to date with additions and subtractions as required.

## Section 3. Probationary Period

A. The first forty-five (45) calendar days of employment for all new employees shall be considered a probationary period.

B. During the aforementioned probationary period, the Director may discharge such employee for any reason whatsoever. An employee discharged during his probationary period shall not have recourse to the Grievance Procedure as set forth in this Agreement. The Director shall have no responsibility for the reemployment of newly engaged probationary employees if they are dismissed during the probationary period.

## Section 4. Job Vacancies, New Jobs Created

- A. If new jobs are created, or if vacancies occur in a higher rated position, the Director shall determine the qualifications required for the position and shall determine which, if any, of the applicants meet the qualifications. The most senior of those determined to be qualified shall be deemed the successful bidder. If any employee is dissatisfied with the determination of the Director, he may institute a meeting with said Director within three (3) calendar days after the notification of the selection is made, however, the decision of the Director is final and binding upon the parties.
- B. The Director agrees to post a notice of such new job or vacancy on the bulletin board for a period of three (3) working days. Such notice shall contain a description of the job, the rate, and when the job will be available. Departmental employees interested, in order to be eligible, must sign the notice.
- C. If a bidder is a successful applicant, he will be notified by a notice placed on the bulletin board within five (5) working days after the expiration of the three (3) working days required under Section 4 "B" above.
- D. Any employee so selected to fill such job shall be granted a trial period of up to sixty (60) calendar days. It shall be determined by the Director at any time after the first thirty (30) calendar days of the trial period that the promoted employee is not qualified to discharge the duties of the position to which he was promoted, the employee shall resume his former position or a position equivalent thereto. The employee shall

receive the rate for the job as of the day he begins his trial period. If removed from the position during or at the end of the trial period, he shall receive the rate of the position to which he is assigned.

E. The above Sections should be in compliance with the rules and regulations established by the New Jersey Department of Personnel.

#### Section 5. Force Reduction.

- A. The Director agrees that it will not engage any new employee unless all of the regular, full-time employees are working the scheduled hours noted in this Agreement.
- B. In the reduction or restoration of the working force, the rule to be followed shall be the length of service with the Director. However, no employees assigned to and performing the duties of a classification which is above that of Laborer shall be laid off unless an employee who is retained is qualified to perform the duties of that classification. The employee with the least seniority shall be laid off first and in re-hiring, the reverse principle shall apply; namely, the last employee laid off shall be the first to be rehired.
- C. Notice of any impending layoff shall be placed upon the bulletin board seventy-two (72) hours prior to layoff.
  - D. Any employee's seniority shall cease under the following conditions:
    - 1. Resignation or termination of employment for cause.
    - Failure to report for work no later than the regular shift beginning on the fourth calendar day following the first working day following the third calendar day after the date of the receipt accompanying the notice mailed by certified mail to the last address of the employee contained in the department files.
    - 3. Layoff of more than twelve (12) consecutive months.

The above Sections should be in compliance with the rules and regulations established by the New Jersey Department of Personnel.

#### ARTICLE 6. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

Section 1. The normal work week shall be from Monday to Friday, both inclusive, and shall be comprised of five (5) days of eight (8) hours each, starting at 7:30 AM through 4:00 PM, including ½ hour lunch break.

Section 2. Any work performed after an employee shall have worked forty (40) hours in any given work week shall be compensated at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the regular rate of pay. The Director, at his discretion, may cause overtime to accrue for payment at a later date he shall designate.

Section 3. The Employer shall notify the employees of any Saturday or Sunday work not later than the end of the shift on Thursday of that week, as practicable, and only if such Saturday or Sunday work is scheduled prior to the end of the shift on Thursday of that week, except in cases of emergency. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed to be a guarantee of overtime if such is scheduled nor shall the right of the Employer to cancel such scheduled overtime be limited.

Section 4. In the event an employee reports for regularly scheduled work shift without having been previously notified that there is no work, the employee shall be guaranteed eight (8) hours pay at his regular rate of pay.

Section 5. Overtime shall be distributed as equally as practical among the employees qualified and capable of performing the work available. For employees performing the Saturday or Sunday work scheduled pursuant to Section 3 hereinabove, the employee(s) shall be paid the overtime rate for the hours actually worked.

Section 6. In the event an employee is called back to work after the conclusion of his normal work shift due to an emergency, the employee will be entitled to a minimum of four (4) hours pay at the overtime rate. An employee called in between 5:30 a.m. and 7:30 a.m. shall be entitled to a minimum of two (2) hours at the overtime rate. Any

employee called in prior to 5:30 a.m. shall be entitled to a minimum of four (4) hours at the overtime rate.

## ARTICLE 7. HOLIDAYS

Section 1. The Employer guarantees to all employees within the bargaining unit, the following holidays with full pay for eight (8) hours at the employee's regular straight time rate of pay, though no work is performed on such days:

New Year's Day

Labor Day

Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Columbus Day

Lincoln's Birthday

Election Day

Washington's Birthday

Veterans Day

Good Friday

Thanksgiving Day

Memorial Day

Friday after Thanksgiving

Independence Day

Christmas Day

Employees hired prior to January 1, 1996 shall receive their birthday as a paid holiday.

Section 2. Employees who work on any of the above holidays shall be paid for such work at two and one-half (2-1/2) times the employee's regular rate, which shall include the holiday pay.

Section 3. If a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday, it shall be celebrated and compensated accordingly on another date at the discretion of the Employer.

#### **ARTICLE 8. VACATIONS**

Section 1. The Employer agrees to grant to all employees within the bargaining unit vacations with pay in accordance with the following schedule:

LENGTH OF SERVICE	VACATION PER YEAR
Up to one (1) Year	One (1) day per month
One (1) year to five (5) years	Three Weeks – 15 days
Six (6) years to fifteen (15) years	Four Weeks – 20 days
Sixteen (16) years and over	Five Weeks – 25 days

Section 2. The Employer agrees that in the event an employee voluntarily leaves the employ of the Employer before the vacation period, he shall be compensated for any accrued vacation time that may be due him in accordance with the above schedule on a prorated basis.

Section 3. The vacation schedule shall be drafted by the Director on or before May 1<sup>st</sup> of each year and posted on the bulletin board. In preparing the vacation schedule, the Employer shall endeavor to assign vacations on the basis of department seniority of its employees. It is specifically agreed, however, that the assignment of all vacation shall be determined by the Employer with due regard to its efficient operation.

Section 4. Vacation shall be taken during the regular vacation period between May 1<sup>st</sup> and October 31<sup>st</sup> inclusive. Employees may request that their vacation may be taken at a period other than the time set forth herein and the Employer will give fair consideration to such request.

<u>Section 5</u>. Vacation days shall accumulate to a maximum of the previous year and the current year if not taken per State Statute.

## **ARTICLE 9. LEAVES**

## Section 1. LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

Upon making timely application, in writing, employees may apply to the Employer for a leave of absence without pay for a period not exceeding ninety (90) days without loss of seniority rights. Such leave may be extended with the approval of the Employer.

#### Section 2. PAID SICK LEAVE

Employees shall be granted sick leave with pay as follows:

- A. One (1) day for each month of service for first year of employment.
- B. Fifteen (15) days paid sick leave each year shall be granted to all employees after one year of service and the same shall be cumulative from year to year.
- C. If an employee is absent from work for reasons that entitle him to sick leave, the Department Head or his designated representative shall be notified as early as possible, but not later than 7:30 AM of the scheduled work shift from which he is absent. Failure to so notify the Department Head or his designated representative may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for the absence and may constitute cause for disciplinary action. An employee who is absent for three (3) consecutive days or more and who does not notify the Department Head or some other reasonable representative of the Township on any of the first three (3) days will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge.
- D. If an employee uses 5 or less sick days during a calendar year, the employee will be entitled to a one-time stipend of \$500, payable following the end of that calendar year. For every subsequent, consecutive year where the employee uses 5 or less sick days, the employee will be entitled to a one-time stipend of \$750, payable following the end of that calendar year. Where the employee uses more than 5 sick days in a calendar year, the employee will not receive a stipend, and will only be eligible for a \$500 stipend for the next calendar year.

## E. Employees shall be entitled to personal days as follows:

One (1) year to five (5) years of service two (2) days

Six (6) years to fifteen (15) years of service three (3) days

Sixteen (16) years and over four (4) days

A personal business day application shall, except in cases of emergency, be made at least two (2) working days prior to the personal day to be given.

Employees hired after January 1, 1996 shall be entitled to personal days as follows:

One (1) year to five (5) years of service one (1) day

Six (6) years to fifteen (15) years of service two (2) days

Sixteen (16) years and over three (3) days

## Section 3. BEREAVEMENT LEAVE PAY

Employees will be granted five (5) working days off with pay at the employee's straight time rate in the event of the death of the employee's spouse, child, parent, parent-in-law, sister, brother, grandparents, or other members of the employee's immediate household. The Employer reserves the right to verify the legal relationship of the family member to the employee.

Employees shall be granted one day off, the day of the funeral or the day of viewing, without loss of pay, for the funeral of any other relative or a friend, one day for each, for a total of two (2) days per year. Employees hired after January 1, 1996 shall not receive a day off for the death of a friend.

#### Section 4. JURY DUTY.

An employee who is called for Jury Duty shall be paid the difference between the daily fee allowed by the Court and eight (8) straight time hours pay for scheduled working time lost; however, the employee shall be required to give prior notice to the Employer of his call for Jury Duty.

## ARTICLE 10. WELFARE AND PENSION BENEFITS

Section 1. Effective January 1, 2016, the Employer shall provide health care benefits including medical, prescription, dental and vision (highlights of the plan attached as Exhibit "B").

Section 2. In accordance with the pension and health benefit reforms set forth in P.L. 2011, c. 78, all employees shall contribute towards the total premiums or periodic charges for all health care benefits including medical, prescription, dental and vision. The aforementioned provisions set forth in this Article may also be subject to the terms and conditions of other applicable State and/or federal statutes.

Section 3. All employees hired after 1/1/2008 may only enroll in Direct Access or other managed care plans offered by the Employer. Employees hired on or before 1/1/2008 may continue to remain enrolled in the Traditional Plan. The Township reserves the right to change insurance carriers or institute a self-insurance plan at any time, provided that the policy provides for coverage equal to or greater than the Township's policy in effect as of January 1, 2016, and attached hereto as Exhibit "B".

Section 4. Payment of a Life Insurance Policy is based upon present practice and policy.

## **ARTICLE 11. WORK SCHEDULE**

The normal work schedule shall be forty (40) hours per week, Monday through Friday 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. including a daily half (1/2) hour unpaid lunch break and twice daily fifteen (15) minute paid breaks.

## **ARTICLE 12. DISCHARGE**

Section 1. The Employer shall not discharge or discipline or suspend any employee with just cause. Before any employees shall be disciplined or suspended or discharged, there will be a conference held between the Union and/or its representative, and the Employer. Causes for immediate discharge shall include by example and not limitation, theft of money, goods or merchandise or time, or Company time, proven drunkenness, under proof of being under the influence of liquor or drugs during working hours, calling an unauthorized strike or walkout, assault on Employer or its representative, failure to report an accident which employee would normally be aware of, proven recklessness resulting in serious damages while on duty.

Section 2. A grievance by an employee claiming that he has been unjustly subjected to minor disciplinary action must be submitted to the Employer, in writing, within three (3) days of the suspension or discipline, otherwise the same will be considered to have been made for just cause. Contests of major disciplinary action shall be appealed in accordance with the procedures established by the Civil Service Commission.

Section 3. All warnings must be given in writing, and a copy of such warning shall be given to the employee and the Union. If no grievance is written to dispute the warning within five (5) days of action, it will be assumed that the warning is justified.

## Section 4. Progressive discipline:

- (a) 1<sup>st</sup> offense verbal warning
- (b) 2<sup>nd</sup> offense written warning
- (c) 3<sup>rd</sup> offense written warning, 3 day suspension
- (d) 4<sup>th</sup> offense 5 day suspension
- (e) 5<sup>th</sup> offense termination

<u>Section 5</u>. If the Employer has reason to reprimand an employee, the said reprimand shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass the employee before other employees or the public.

## **ARTICLE 13. GENERAL**

Section 1. It is agreed that the parties hereto will continue their practice of not discriminating against any employee because of race, color, creed, religion, nationality, or sex, and further, that no employee shall be discriminated against or interfered with because of legal Union activities.

<u>Section 2</u>. No employee shall made or be requested to make any agreement, or enter into any understanding inconsistent or conflicting with the terms of the Agreement.

<u>Section 3</u>. The Employer shall provide reasonable bulletin board space for the posting of official Union notices.

#### ARTICLE 14. VETERANS RIGHTS AND BENEFITS

Section 1. The seniority rights of all employees who enlist or who are drafted pursuant to an appropriate law now in force or to be enacted, shall be maintained during such period of military service. Each such employee shall have the right to reinstatement to their former position or to a position of equal status, at the salary rate previously received by him at the time of his induction into military service including all salary increases granted by the Employer to said employee's previous position during the period of such military service.

Section 2. Such reinstatement of veterans shall be upon application therefore made within ninety (90) days after such an employee is honorably discharged from service. This clause shall be subject to all pertinent and applicable provisions of the Selective Training and Service Act, as amended.

Section 3. The Employer agrees to allow the necessary time for any employee in the Reserves to perform the duties when called without impairment of his seniority rights and shall pay the difference between such service pay and eight (8) hours straight time for scheduled working time lost.

<u>Section 4</u>. The Employer agrees to pay an employee for all reasonable time involved in reporting for a physical examination for military service.

## **ARTICLE 15. SEPARATION AND SEVERANCE PAY**

<u>Section 1</u>. Separation from the service of the Employer may result from voluntary resignation of the employee, or by the termination of his services by the appropriate Department Head.

<u>Section 2.</u> Employees who resign will tender the resignation in writing, if possible, at least two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of the resignation, in order to provide sufficient time for appointing and breaking in a successor.

Section 3. Termination of full-time employees' services can only be accomplished after such recommendation in writing has been referred to, reviewed, and approved by the Department Head in accordance to ordinance.

Section 4. Employees retiring from their positions will be entitled to terminal leave pay equivalent to one-half of the total number of unused sick days to a maximum of \$15,000.00

## **ARTICLE 16. LONGEVITY**

Section 1. In addition to the wages employees shall receive a longevity bonus in accordance with the following schedule:

Years of Service	Amount of Annual Pay
For year in which completes 4 years	\$ 550.00
For year in which completes 8 years	\$ 850.00
For year in which completes 12 years	\$ 1200.00
For year in which completes 16 years	\$ 1500.00
For year in which completes 20 years	\$ 1800.00

## **ARTICLE 17. WAGES**

Section 1.

(a) The 2016 salary schedule for current members of the unit is as follows:

Title	Minimum	Maximum
Laborer	\$ 8,000.00	\$ 54,000.00
Mechanic's Helper	\$ 5,000.00	\$ 54,000.00
Body and Fender Mechanic	\$ 20,000.00	\$ 60,000.00
Mechanic	\$ 30,000.00	\$ 65,000.00
Mechanic-Fire Apparatus	\$ 35,000.00	\$ 60,000.00
Senior Mechanic	\$ 35,000.00	\$ 55,000.00
Senior Mechanic-Diesel	\$ 50,000.00	\$ 80,000.00

(b) Except as noted below, existing employees appointed to a Civil Service title reflected in subsection A, which requires enhanced training, experience or qualifications pursuant to Civil Service Job Title descriptions (i.e. moving down the chart in subsection A), will have their salary increased by 10% upon formal appointment by the Employer and the employee having attained all Civil Service training, experience and qualifications. If an employee receives a 10% increase, and subsequently has any necessary certifications or qualifications for that position suspended or revoked, that employee will have their salary reduced by 10%.

Section 2. For the length of the contract, effective January 1st, all unit members shall receive an annual 2% increase.

<u>Section 3</u>. Salaries for unit members shall be established pursuant to the ranges established by the Township Salary Ordinance at the discretion of the Township and based upon the employee's experience skills and training.

Section 4. Employees shall receive a \$500.00 clothing/tool allowance per year.

## Section 5. CDL License Incentive:

Any employee who obtains a CDL License during the term of this Agreement shall receive a \$500.00 base salary increase on the anniversary date of the day the license was obtained for (4) consecutive calendar years.

## **ARTICLE 18. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM**

Section 1. The Employer agrees to contribute two cents (\$.02) per hour, excluding overtime hours, to Teamsters Local 11 Educational Program for all hours an employee receives pay (excluding overtime hours). Such fund is to be administered in accordance with Local 11 Benefits Plan Trust Agreement by an equal number of Employer and Employee Trustees.

## ARTICLE 19. SHOP STEWARD CLAUSE

Section 1. The Union may appoint one of their accredited members to act as Shop Steward. It shall be his duty to receive complaints and dispose of them in the manner provided under Grievance Procedure and Arbitration. It is the intention of the parties hereto that the Shop Steward will, to the best of his ability, attempt to carry out the terms, provisions and intentions of this Agreement, and to that end will cooperate with management to the fullest extent. It is understood and agreed, however, that the Shop Steward shall have no authority of any kind save that given under this Agreement. It is also agreed that the Shop Steward will be the first man to report to work and the last man to be laid off, regardless of seniority rating, and shall be subject to all other provisions of this contract.

Section 2. The Shop Steward shall not be discriminated against because of his faithful performance of duties of such.

Section 3. The authority of the Shop Steward and alternate so designated by the Union shall be limited to, and shall not exceed, the following duties and activities:

- (a) The investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of the collective bargaining agreement.
- (b) The transmission of such messages and information which shall originate with, and are authorized by, the Local Union or its officers, provided such messages and information:
  - 1. have been reduced to writing, or
- 2. if not reduced to writing, are of routine nature and do not involve work stoppages, slowdowns, refusal to handle goods or any other interference with the Employer's business.

<u>Section 4</u>. Shop Stewards and alternates have no authority to take strike action, or any other action interrupting the Employer's business, except as authorized by official action of the Union.

<u>Section 5</u>. The Employer shall have the authority to impose proper discipline, including discharge, in the event the Shop Steward has taken unauthorized strike action, slowdown, or work stoppage in violation of this Agreement.

Section 6. Stewards shall be permitted to investigate, present and process grievances on the property of the Employer, without loss of pay, between the hours of 7:30 and 8:00 AM and 3:30 and 4:00 PM. Such time spent in handling grievances shall be considered working hours in computing daily and/or weekly overtime.

Section 7. The Shop Steward shall have seniority preference for layoff purpose ONLY.

Section 8. The Chief Steward or his designated alternate will be permitted to attend arbitration hearings without loss of pay, which must be requested in writing with ample notice.

Section 9. The Employer agrees to allow reasonable time for the Shop Steward or the designated alternate to hand out Union receipts, communications, etc., which have been sent by the Union office to be distributed to its members, between the hours of 7:30 and 8:00 AM and 4:00 and 4:30 PM.

## ARTICLE 20. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT shall become effective on January 1, 2016, and shall continue in full force and effect until December 31, 2019. This Agreement shall automatically renew itself from year to year thereafter, unless either party is given notice in writing at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date to change or modify or terminate this Agreement. In such cases, the parties shall endeavor to negotiate a new Agreement within sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement.

TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN	TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 11
By: Christopher Pianese	By: Michael Cursio
CON	<u>IMITTEE</u>
	2

#### TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN, HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS FOR HEALTH BENEFITS AFTER RETIREMENT FOR CERTAIN EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:10-23 authorizes a public employer, in its discretion, to assume the entire cost of health care coverage for its employees who have retired with a requisite number of years of service credit with the Public Employee Retirement System and requisite number of years of service with the public employer, as established by the employer and/or who have reached a certain age at the time of their retirement; and

WHEREAS, funding is available and the payment of such benefits is intended to reward those employees who have devoted their careers to serving the needs of the citizens of North Bergen.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN AS follows:

Section 1. The Township of North Bergen hereby authorizes payment of the entire cost of coverage for its employees and their dependents: (a) who have retired on a disability pension; (b) who have retired after 25 years or more of service credit in the Public Employees Retirement System and at least 10 years of service with the Township of North Bergen; (c) who have retired and reached the age of 62 years or older with at least 15 years of service with the Township of North Bergen. The coverage shall mirror the coverage provided to active employees.

Section 2. For purposes of this ordinance, "dependents" shall mean an employee's spouse and the employee's unmarried children, including stepchildren, and legally adopted children, under the age of 23 who live with the employees in a regular parent-child relationship, and depend on the employee for maintenance and support.

Section 3. The benefits conferred by this ordinance apply only to those employees employed by the Township of North Bergen on January 1, 2002 and who have retired thereafter. This ordinance is not retroactive.

Section 4. Once the retiree becomes eligible to receive benefits pursuant to Medicare, the health benefits conferred by this ordinance shall become secondary to those benefits provided to the retiree under Medicare.

Section 5. The benefits conferred by this ordinance shall be secondary to any other health benefits or coverage available to the retiree and/or their dependents from other sources.

Section 6. The Mayor, Township Administrator, and such other officials, employees, agents of the Township, are hereby authorized and directed to prepare and execute all necessary documents and perform all necessary acts to implement this ordinance.

Section 7. If any section, sentence or other part of this ordinance is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remainder of this ordinance but shall be confined in its effect to the section, portion, or other parts of this ordinance directly involved in the controversy in which such judgment shall be rendered.

Section 8. All ordinances, or parts thereof, which are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed, but only to the extent of such inconsistencies.

Section 9. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication according to the law.

Introduced: February 13, 2002

Published: February 18, 2002 & March 2, 2002

Adopted: February 27, 2002

Attest Carol Ann Fontana
Township Clerk

Commissioner	Cabrera	Yes
Commissioner	Ferraro	Yes
Commissioner	Gargiulo	Yes
Commissioner	Perez	Yes
Mayor Sacco		Yes

## **EXHIBIT "B" HEALTH CARE BENEFITS HIGHLIGHTS**

Horizon.  Horizon Blue Gross  Making Healthe	Blue Shield of New Jo	FINAL / CONFIRMED	GROUP #85944
PLAN TVP8	COMPREHENSIVE	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION
	MEDICAL	Deductible	\$100/\$200
Traditional		Colusurance	80%
		Catastrophic limit	\$2,000/\$1,000
	COMPREHENSIVE	Dapendont up to:	26th birthday
PLAN TYPE	MEDICAL	Deneitts	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION
		in-net ov copay	\$5.00 pcp/specialist
		ER Copay In-Patient copay	\$50.00   Hone
Direct Access		In-network deductible	none
\$5 copay		In-network coinsurance	100%
. , ,		in- network & out of network MOOP*	
		nut-net deductible	\$200/\$400
		Out-net coinsulance Dependent up to:	80% 26th birthday
**************************************	COMPREHENSIVE	TOTAL STATE OF THE	
PLAN TYPE	MEDICAL	DENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION \$20.00 pep/\$40.00 specialist
		in-net ov copay Er Copay	\$100.00
Advantage EPO		in-Patient Copay	\$250 per day up to S days
\$20/\$40 copay		Out Petient Surgery Copay	\$200.00
		Ambulatory Surgical Center Copay In-net deductible	\$100.00 none
		In-net coinsurance	100%
		in-network MOOP	\$2,500/\$5,000
	COMPREHENSIVE	Dependent up to:	28th birthday
PLAN TYPE	MEDICAL	DANGATS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION
		in-net ov copay ER Copay	\$20.00 pcp/\$40.00 specialist \$50.00
POS		In-Patient copay	none
\$20/\$40 copay		in-net deductible	none
D. t		in-net coinsurance	100%
Primary Care Dr. must be selected	1	In- network & out of network MOOP* out-net deductible	\$5,000/\$10,000 \$2,000/\$4,000
	į	out-net coinsurance	60%
		Dependent up to:	26th birthday
PLAN TYPE	DENTAL.	BENEFITS coinsurance	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION 100%/ 50%
Dental		Deductible	none
anaged Dental Choico		ВГМ	none
Primpiy Care Dentist		Ortho Max	dependent children 50%
must be selected		Dopendent up to:	End-of-month of 23rd birthday
PLAN TYPE	DENTAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION 100%/80%/50%
Dentai			\$25 single/ \$75 family
Dental Option Plan		вры	\$1,250
			\$800 per lifetime
PLAN TYPE			Unit-of-month of 23rd birthday
PLAN 11PE	PRESCRIPTION	BENEFTS Ix copay Retail	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION \$5/\$10/\$15
	l l	Or copay MO	\$5/\$10/ <b>\$</b> 15
pv		Rotali day supply	1 copay for each 30 day supply
RX			\$1,320.00/\$2,640.00 26th birthday
MOOP = Maximum out- w hires: Coverage effe- ployee Termination: 8	of pocket	onth following 30 days of employment	

35

## DAVIS VISION EYEGARE REFRAMED

## Township of North Bergen Vision Plan

Effective 1/1/2015 Dependent covered up to end of month of 26th birthday

Bonefit	Frequency Once every -	In-network Copay		In-network Coverage
Eye Examination	12 months	\$0	Covered in full. Includes	ditation when professionally Indicated.
Spectacio Lonsos	12 months	\$0	Clear plastic lenses in any single vision, bifocal, tiflocal or lenticular prescription. Covered in fut (See below for additional lens options and coatings.)	
Frame	12 months	\$0	Covered in Full Frames: OR, Frame Allowance: OR, Visionworks Frame Allowance:	Any Fashion or Designer level frame from Davis Vision's Collection* (retail value, up to \$150). \$130 toward any frame from provider plus 20% off any balance. No copay required. \$180 allowance plus 20% off any balance toward any frame from a Visionworks family of store locations.4  No copey required.
Contact Lens Evaluation, Fitting & Follow Up Caro	f2 months	\$0	Davis Vision Collection Contacts. Non Collection Standard Contacts: Non Collection Specialty Contacts?	Covered in full. 15% discount 15% discount
Contact Lenses (in Keu of eyeglasses)	12 months	\$0	Covered in Full Contacts: Planned Replacement OR Disposable OR, Contact Lens Allowance; OR, Visually Required Contacts:	From Davis Vision's Collection', up to: Two boxes/multi-packs' Four boxes/multi-packs' \$130 allowance toward any contacts from provider's supply plus 15% off behance. No copey required. Covered in full with prior approval. 'Mamber of contactions horses may vary based on manufacturer's packaging

Significant savings on optional frames, lens types and coatings)	Member Price
Davis Vision Collection Frames: Fashion   Designer   Premier	\$0   \$0   \$25
Tinting of Plastic Lenses	\$0
Oversize Lenses	\$0
Scratch-Resistant Coating	\$0
Ultraviolet Coating	
Anti-Reflective Coating: Standard   Premium   Ultra	5   \$48   \$80
Polycarbonate Lenses	
High-Index Lenses	\$55
Progressive Lenses: Standard   Premium   Ultra	1 \$90   \$140
Polarized Lenses	
Photochromic Lenses (i.e. Transitions*, etc.y*	\$65
Scratch Protection Plan: Single Vision   Multifocal Lenses	\$20   \$40

- The Davis Vision Collection is available at most participating independent provider locations. Collection is subject to change. Collection is inclusive of select toric and multifocal contacts.
- Including, but not limited to torio, multifocal and gas permeable contact lenses.
- Allowence is available at these Visionworks smally of store locations. Davis Vision, Emptre Vision Centers, Tolst Vision Care, EyeMesters, Cembridge Eye Lectors, Vision World, Or Bizer's Vision World, Eye Dr. Dr. Bizer's Valu Vision, Doctor's Valu Vision, How Eyes, Walandrocks
- "Transitions" is a registered trademark of Transitions Optical Inc

Please note: Your provider reserves the right to not dispense materials until all applicable member costs, fees and copayments have been collected. Contact fenses: Routine eye examinations do not include professional services for contact lens evaluations. Any applicable fees [above the evaluation and fitting allowance] are the responsibility of the member. If contact fenses are selected and fitted, they may not be exchanged for eyeglasses. Progressive tenses: if you are unable to edapt to progressive addition lenses you have purchased, conventional bifocals will be supplied at no additional cost; however, your copayment is nonrefundable. May not be combined with other discourts or offers. Please be advised these lens options and copayments apply to in-network benefits.

**OUT-OF-NETWORK BENEFITS AVAILABLE** 

Printed 11/2/2015

Page 2 of 2

AARG